
SCRUTINY : NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES, PLANNING AND 

COUNTRYSIDE
2.30 pm MONDAY, 15TH APRIL, 2019

COUNCIL CHAMBER

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 2.00 pm.  
This meeting is for Committee Members only 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used 
for training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber 
and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 

above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Environmental Enforcement across the County 
Borough 
No Officers in attendance – Report for information. 5 - 10

4. Merthyr Valleys Homes – Tackling Fly-Tipping, an 
Overview 
To consider the attached report 11 - 18

5. Household Waste and Recycling Centres 
(HWRCs) Update 
To consider the attached report 19 - 22

6. Draft Scrutiny Report - Pitch Fees and the 
Decreasing Rates of Participation in Team Sports 
in Merthyr Tydfil 

7. Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 23 - 34

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.

10. Forward Work Programme 
To consider the attached report



11. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors:   D Sammon (Chair)
                      D Jones (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:   M Colbran, J Davies, L Davies and 
C T Jones

Co-optees: R Holdaway, J McCarthy and T Butler

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT-  

INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

Environmental Enforcement across the County 
Borough 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 An information report to update committee members on the current position of the 

Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement Team in regards to enforcement.  
 
 
 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Fly tipping is a Corporate Priority and has been high on the agenda since February 

2016. Fly tipping is not unique to Merthyr Tydfil; it is a national problem and fly 
tipping incidents are increasing. According to Keep Britain Tidy 2016/17 Local 
Authorities in the UK recorded in excess of one million incidents of fly tipping costing 
over £50 million of tax payer’s money to clear off Council owned land. 

 
 

3.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
3.1 In Merthyr Tydfil, outcomes were adequate for fly tipping as the performance scores 

for fly tipping clearance were slightly better than the all Wales average, as shown in 
the table below. 
 
 

Date Written 1st April 2019 

Report Author Paul Jones, Jemma Price  

Service Area Neighbourhood Services 

Committee Date 15th April 2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
Key Indicators 

March 2013 
Merthyr Tydfil 

March 2013 
Wales 

Fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 working days 92.3 % 92.2 % 

 
3.2 The Fly-tipping functionality formed a part of the Waste Services Department in 

2012/13 and resources included two members of staff (3.5 days per week) and the 
use of one vehicle (this also included all receptacle deliveries, private works).  

 
3.3 All fly-tipping evidence was gathered by Waste Services and passed to 

Environmental Health Department for further action. All prosecutions were 
undertaken by Environmental Health. 

3.4 Fly tipping is not unique to Merthyr Tydfil; it is a national problem and fly tipping 
incidents are increasing. Tackling fly tipping within Merthyr Tydfil has been high on 
the agenda over the last three years and links into the corporate priority ‘A 
Sustainable Environment’.   

 
3.5 Local Authorities (LA’s) are responsible for clearing fly-tipping on public land. LA’s 

may also investigate incidents on private land but there is no obligation to clear the 
waste. 
 

3.6 Natural Resources Wales (NRW) is responsible for dealing with large scale illegal 
dumping, including incidents involving organised crime and certain hazardous 
wastes. NRW will only clear up such waste where there is an immediate risk to the 
environment or human health. 
 

3.7 The percentage of waste cleared off Council owned land in Merthyr Tydfil compared 
to All Wales from 2013/14 to 2017/18 is shown in Table 2: 
 

Table 2: Percentage of fly tipping incidents cleared off Council owned land within 5 days 
from 2013/14 to 2017/18: 
 

Key Indicators 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

% Fly tipping incidents cleared 
within 5 working days (Council 
Land) in Merthyr Tydfil 

96 92 95 100 100 

% Fly tipping incidents cleared 
within 5 working days (Council 
Land) in Wales 

95 93 95 95 95 

 
 

4.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 

Fly tipping Complaints 
 

4.1 In 2016/17 and 2017/18 MTCBC achieved 100% for incidents of fly tipping waste 
cleared off Council owned land within 5 working days. According to All Wales data, 
MTCBC have been the top performing authority for fly tipped waste removed off 
council owned land within 5 working days since 2016/17. 

Table 1: Percentage of fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 working days in 2012/13 

Page 6



 
4.2 In April 2018 the performance indicator for fly tipping clearance changed from the 

percentage of incidents cleared from council owned land within 5 working days to the 
average number of days taken to clear fly tipped waste from council owned land.  

 
4.3 In Quarter 1 (April, May, June 2018) there were 898 reported incidents of fly tipping. 

In order to monitor the PI set by Welsh Government, it has been recorded that the 
average number of days taken to remove fly tipped waste off council owned land 
was 1.87 days. 
 

4.4 In Quarter 2 the reported incidents fell to 753 and the average number of days taken 
to clear fly tipped waste off council owned land was 1.57. 
 

4.5 Quarter 3 saw a further reduction in reported complaints to 645 which had a positive 
effect on the PI, and the average number of days taken to remove waste off council 
owned land was 1.43. 
 

4.6 Reported incidents for quarter 4 were 615, which is a steady reduction compared to 
quarter 2 and 3 of the same year. Naturally, this means that the number of days 
taken to remove the waste off council owned land also reduced to an average of 
1.32. 
  

4.7 The average number of days taken to clear waste in quarter 1, 2 and 3 was 1.62 
compared to 1.72 in quarters 1 and 2. 
 

4.8 The overall average number of days taken to clear waste off council owned land for 
2018/19 was 1.55. 
 

Fly Tipping Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) 
 

4.9 On 25th October 2017, the Unauthorised Deposit of Waste (Fixed Penalties) (Wales) 
Regulations came into force to help Local Authorities to tackle fly tipping across 
Wales by way of serving FPNs for small scale fly tipping offences.  
 

4.10 A report was put before Full Council on 7th March 2018 asking committee members 
to approve the report giving authorised officers the powers to serve £400 FPNs for 
first time, small scale fly tipping offences. This report was approved and FPNs were 
served from April 1st 2018. 
 

4.11 Since April 1st 2018, 54 FPNs for small scale fly tipping have been served, in which 9 
have been paid. Twenty one FPNs have been revoked for various reasons. One 
reason is, if information is found for two people living in the same address but one 
person takes full responsibility for the disposal of the waste, then the other FPN is 
revoked and only one person is expected to pay. Four FPNs are in final demand 
stage. Twenty FPNs have been progressed to a formal investigation. 
 

Section 34 Notices 
 

4.12 A section 34 Notice is a legal notice served on a business giving them 7 days to 
furnish documentation proving how they dispose of their commercial waste. This 
section comes under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 

 

Page 7



4.13 Should a business fail to respond, or give insufficient documentation, a £300 FPN is 
served which gives the business 14 days to discharge liability.  
 

4.14 If no payment is received the business is served with a final demand notice giving a 
further 7 days to discharge liability. If there is no response, the file is passed to the 
Legal Department for consideration for prosecution. 
 

4.15 Should the business furnish adequate documentation, no further action is taken. 
 

4.16 We aim to serve at least 5 notices per week as this allows us to establish how 
businesses are disposing of their commercial waste. This exercise was implemented 
due to the nature of the waste found during fly tipping investigations. 

 
Prosecutions 
 

4.17 Since the implementation of the Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement Team, 
there have been 20 successful prosecutions for fly tipping and s.34 offences. There 
are currently 7 files with the legal department (6 fly tipping cases, 1 s.34 cases) of 
which 2 have been deferred for trial, 2 have initial court dates. Four cases have been 
through the formal interview stage and require the case file to be written up and two 
S.34 case files are due to be written up. 

 
Promotion and Awareness 
 

4.18 We are working closely with Corporate Communications to promote the work that the 
Enforcement Team are undertaking including, before & after pictures, fly tipping 
videos, publicising enforcement action taken etc. 

 
4.19 Other ways in which awareness is raised is by adding warning signs on litter bins to 

discourage residents from depositing household waste in public litter bins. Letter 
drops are also carried out in problematic areas and where cleansing operations have 
been undertaken.  
 

4.20 Officers within the Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement Team have built a 
better working relationship with the local Constabulary which in-turn means more 
patrols have been undertaken in partnership around the borough. These patrols 
have meant that officers have been able to undertake a stop and search with other 
officers in the council and the Police. As well as this we have also undertaken a stop 
and search in partnership with Caerphilly CBC, SW Police, Gwent Police, 
Commoners Association and NRW. As a result of the most recent stop and search, a 
full investigation is currently being undertaken.  
 

Private Land 
 
4.21 Although all incidents of fly tipping are investigated, waste is only removed off 

council owned land. Local authorities have a duty to ensure waste is removed off 
council owned land, however this duty does not extend to private land. 
 

4.22 Regardless of the duty, the local authority cannot take the tonnages that would result 
from the removal of waste off private land. If the local authority were to exceed the 
Welsh Government targets for waste, there would be substantial negative financial 
implications. 

Page 8



 

4.23 In addition to the financial implications, the Environmental Enforcement Team do not 
have the resources to remove waste off public and private land. Furthermore, 
removing waste off private land would have a detrimental effect on the amount of 
work required by the office staff, who are already inundated with the work produced 
from council owned land. 
 

4.24 Finally, if the Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement team were to enter private 
land to remove waste, they may be deemed as trespassing. 
 

4.25 Apart from sections 33 & 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, there are a 
number of different options within legislation to deal with fly tipping on private land. 
However there are certain conditions that must be met in order for specific sections 
of legislation to be used. Other pieces of legislation include; Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, section 215; Environmental Protection Act 1990, sections 79 & 
80; Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949, section 4; Anti-Social Behaviour Crime 
and Policing Act 2014, Part 4 etc. Different departments within the authority have 
specific powers that allow them to utilise various sections of legislation. 
 

4.26 There are currently 14 community groups that operate throughout the county 
borough and although waste is not removed off private land, we do work with 
community groups where necessary and ‘Tidy Towns’ will assist with removing 
waste off private land when externally funded. 
 

 

5.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
5.1 We would like to significantly reduce the instances of fly tipping within the borough. 

In order to achieve this we would like to remove and investigate all instances of fly 
tipping on council owned land within a timely manner. Where necessary we also aim 
to prosecute to help reduce the incidents of fly tipping.  
 

5.2 We want to carry out more surveillance to gain intelligence and evidence on fly 
tippers. The Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement Team have a number of 
covert cameras available to use for surveillance purposes. Due to the capacity within 
the department, there is a lack of surveillance being carried out. More surveillance 
will have a positive effect on the department as it will allow for more prosecutions, 
which with publicity, will deter potential offenders from fly tipping in the area.  

 
5.3 We would like all businesses within the borough to adhere to their duty of care under 

s.34 of the Environmental Protection Act (1990). This can be achieved by 
establishing how businesses dispose of their waste and ensuring it is done in a safe 
and legal manner.  
 

5.4 On February 19th 2019 the Welsh Government passed The Household Waste Duty 
of Care Regulations (Wales) 2019. This legislation aims to reduce the chances of 
waste ending up in the hands of those who could potentially dispose of it illegally. 
The fixed penalty notice (FPN) for breaches of the household waste duty of care 
provides authorities with an alternative enforcement option to prosecuting offenders 
through the courts. It allows an individual to discharge liability for the duty of care 
offence by payment of a fixed penalty. They can be a more proportionate 

Page 9



enforcement response to certain offences. They can also act as an effective 
deterrent and even encourage behavioural change. 

 

6.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
6.1 Prioritise hot spot areas and continue to send letter drops to problematic areas 

advising of the issues in the area and ask for information. 
 

6.2 Continue to serve FPNs for small scale fly tipping.  
 

6.3 Continue to establish how businesses are disposing of their commercial waste. 
 

6.4 Continue with Comms updates. 
 

6.5 Add livery to all cleansing vehicles to raise awareness of fly tipping and FPNs. 
 

6.6 Produce a report for full council to implement The Household Waste Duty of Care 
Regulations (Wales) 2019. 
 
 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Environmental enforcement contributes to the Council’s environmental wellbeing 
objective; communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and 
countryside. 

 

 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER FOR NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 
PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 

Page 10



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Merthyr Valleys Homes – Tackling Fly-Tipping, an 
Overview 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 There is a national concern with regards to fly-tipping and the cleanliness of our 

cities and towns, and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council strive to keep the 
county borough as clean as possible with the help and support of local businesses 
and the also the communities themselves. 

 
1.2 Following the good work that Merthyr Valleys Homes (MVH) has undertaken with 

regards to fly-tipping and litter picking, the Chair has invited MVH to provide 
members of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny 
Committee with an overview on how they currently tackle fly-tipping issues, the 
levels of incidents encountered and the amount of waste involved. Please see 
Appendix A for Merthyr Valleys Homes report, ‘Tackling Fly-Tipping – an Overview’. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 Scrutiny Committee notes the contents of this report.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  There is a national concern with regards to fly-tipping and the cleanliness of our 

cities and towns, and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council strive to keep the 
county borough as clean as possible with the help and support of local businesses 
and the also the communities themselves. 

 

Date Written 5th April 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 15th April 2019 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

 
4.1 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council had previously transferred its housing stock 

to Merthyr Valley Homes. 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

 
5.1 Following the good work that Merthyr Valleys Homes (MVH) has undertaken with 

regards to fly-tipping and litter picking, the Chair has invited MVH to provide 
members of the Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny 
Committee with an overview on how they currently tackle fly-tipping issues, the 
levels of incidents encountered and the amount of waste involved. Please see 
Appendix A for Merthyr Valleys Homes report, ‘Tackling Fly-Tipping – an Overview’. 

 

6.0  WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

 
6.1 The Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee would 

like to explore issues such as fixed penalty notices (FPN’s) and how our 
organisations can build stronger working links that will ultimately benefit the 
communities of Merthyr Tydfil. 

 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Scrutiny Committee to consider the report and any actions arising from the meeting. 
 

 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

Report Title Tackling Fly-Tipping - an Overview 

Date of Meeting 15th April 2019 

Agenda Reference  

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of Report:  

 
Merthyr Valleys Homes has been asked to provide members of the Scrutiny Committee with 
an overview on how we currently tackle fly-tipping issues, the levels of incidents encountered 
and the amount of waste involved. 

 

Report For: 

   
Discussion and decision 
 
Decision 

  
Discussion 
 
Information 

     

Confidentiality:  

This report is open  
 

Recommendation(s):  

 
Scrutiny Committee notes the contents of this report.  
 

 

For further information: 

Name   Position Direct Tel No. E-Mail: 

Victoria Slade Director of 
Operations 

 

01685 727754 Victoria.slade@mvhomes.org.uk 

Maria Lewis Head of 
Community & 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

01685 727850 Maria.lewis@mvhomes.org.uk 

 

Appendix A 

Page 13



     

2 
 

1.0 Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 Merthyr Valleys Homes has been asked to provide members of the Scrutiny Committee 
with an overview on how we currently tackle fly-tipping issues, the levels of incidents 
encountered and the amount of waste involved. 
 
1.2 Merthyr Valleys Homes (MVH) was established in 2009. We currently own and manage 
just over 4,000 homes across the borough and 300 000 square metres of open space 
consisting mainly of open grassed areas. In May 2016 we became Wales` first tenant and 
employee mutual. 
 
1.3 In recent years many of our tenants have been disproportionately affected by Welfare 
benefit changes with over 450 tenants moving onto Universal Credit (UC) since full service 
rollout on 27th June 2018. In addition 58% of our tenants are in receipt of Housing Benefit. 
 

1.4 Not surprisingly we are issuing an increased number of foodbank vouchers and seeing 
increasing numbers of our tenants struggling to meet their basic household financial 
commitments.  
 
1.5 Central to our Corporate Strategy `Yfory` is the vision of working together with our  
tenants to; bring pride in the communities we live; encourage others to take responsibility  and 
understand that some people need more support than others. Explicit in this vision, is the 
effective management of fly-tipping which blights our communities and estates.  
 
 

2.0 How we tackle Fly-tipping  

2.1 Removal 

2.1.1 In August 2015 we developed an Environmental Team (consisting of two employees) to 
respond to the huge increase in fly-tipping on our estates and improve our neighbourhoods 
and communal land. This service removes and tackles fly-tipping and engages with 
communities around the causes of fly-tipping including educating residents on the correct 
disposal of refuse, rubbish and recyclable items. 

2.1.2 Initially, the majority of the Team`s time was spent actually removing rubbish and fly-
tipped items. Between September 2015 and end of March 2016, the Tidy up team removed 
56.5 tons of waste; between April  2016 and March 2017 135 tons; between April 2017 and 
March 2018, 78 tons and April 2018 to  March 2019 69 tons. These figures exclude green 
waste. The year on year reduction from April 2017 corresponds with the full implementation of 
the enforcement process. 

2.1.3 We were very aware the Environmental Team continually clearing rubbish from our 
estates created a level of dependency in terms of residents thinking why should they bother 
disposing of their waste properly, as MVH will clear it anyway.  

2.1.4 In summer 2016, we signed up to Fly mapper, a web based mapping system that 
basically allows front line staff to geographically plot fly-tipping incidents to include the type 
and volume of waste.  At the same time, our Anti Social Behaviour Coordinator became the 
lead officer for fly-tipping enforcement and started working with the Environmental Team to 
undertake more in depth investigatory work to identify perpetrators after undertaking job 
shadowing with MTCBC`s Environmental Health Officer.  
 
2.1.5 Between July 2016 and January 2017, 265 fly-tipping cases were recorded. Once we Page 14



     

3 
 

had the means to gather this level of intelligence, we were able to develop and introduce a 
robust procedure to deal with perpetrators of fly-tipping on our estates, using legal powers 
where necessary. 
 
2.2  Enforcement  
 
2.2.1The current Enforcement Process was introduced after carefully reviewing the options 
available to deal with fly-tipping and seeking legal advice on the tools available. In addition we 
were very conscious of the impending welfare benefit changes and the imminent rollout of 
Universal Credit placing huge financial pressures on our tenants.  Combining this with a 
trauma informed approach whereby we try and understand what prompts a person to fly – tip 
was critical to our approach.  
  
2.2.2 It was felt that our enforcement process should be firm, fair and based on actual costs 
rather than fixed rate charges as we could be re charging tenants who are already financially 
compromised and placing them in further debt. In addition it should reflect the values of our 
mutual and Corporate Strategy, `Yfory`.  
 
2.2.3 The aim therefore is to resolve the majority of cases by early intervention through, 
interviews, verbal and written warnings. If early intervention does not resolve the issue then 
the type of action taken against the perpetrator is dependent on their housing status and 
circumstances: 
 

 Warnings - Interviews and written warnings are used to provide the perpetrator with an 
opportunity to remove the rubbish (if appropriate) to prevent further action being taken 
or agree to pay for the removal. Our ASB Co-ordinator has a number of ways of  
monitoring that the perpetrator does not simply move the rubbish and deposit it 
elsewhere  in the borough, such as; retaining photographic evidence; ensuring details 
are obtained if a waste disposal company is used and by linking in with the civic 
amenity sites. 
 

 Referral for Support – The perpetrator can be referred for support if the issue has 
been caused as a result of an unmet support need. 
 

 Recharging for Removal of Fly- tipping - Where there is evidence that a tenant or 

resident has been responsible for fly-tipping on our land there is an option for us to 

remove the items and recharge them.   

 Notice of Seeking Possession – in serious/repeated instances, if the fly-tipping 

perpetrator is a MVH tenant then a Notice of Seeking Possession can be served on 

Ground 14 which is the first stage of tenancy recovery.  

 Injunctive Proceedings- under Part 1 of the Anti Social Behaviour Crime and Policing 
Act 2014, we can apply for an injunction against a perpetrator of fly-tipping on our 
estates on the grounds that it has caused nuisance or annoyance to the residents of 
that estate. The injunction can be applied for against tenants their visitors or lodgers 
and also against perpetrators who are not tenants including owner occupiers and 
private tenants.  The injunction can include relevant prohibitions to get individuals to 
stop behaving anti- socially ie fly-tipping and could also include positive requirements.  

 
Page 15



     

4 
 

 In Partnership with MTCBC- Any perpetrator who is a commercial body or where it 
appears statutory nuisance has been caused will be referred to MTCBC. The ASB 
Coordinator gathers evidence on such cases working in partnership with the MTCBC 
Environmental Health Officer where offences have been committed on MVH land.  
 

We are aware that MTCBC introduced Fixed Penalty Notices for fly-tipping on 1st April 
2018. These notices provide the local authority with a more efficient and proportionate 
way to deal with small scale fly-tipping and can be used on both public and private 
land. The criteria for issuing a fixed penalty notice is; first time offenders, non 
hazardous waste; up to a car boot load; up to 8 black bags or 1 or 2 bulky items. 
Although, we can see the obvious benefit to the Local authority in using these notices 
for dealing with fly-tipping on public land, we currently resolve the majority of cases of 
small scale fly-tipping on our land by early intervention.   
 

 
2.2.4 Between 1st March 2018 and 1st March 2019, there were 398 recorded incidents of fly 
tipping on our land. Sufficient evidence was obtained identifying 76 perpetrators. All 76 
perpetrators were invited for interview and 72 attended.  
 
2.2.5 Of the 76 incidents; 41 resulted in a Stage One warning for fly tipping and no further 
action; 35 of the 76 cases resulted in a Stage One warning and a recharge for clearance 
(average cost/ recharge £96 plus VAT). The majority of these recharges have been paid or 
are being paid via a direct debit repayment arrangement. During this period, 2 Notices of 
Seeking Possession were issued in respect of large scale fly tipping.  No one has reoffended 
after a warning and anecdotal remarks state word of mouth is warning people about our 
enforcement action. 
 
2.2.6 The above results show that effective action can be taken if the perpetrator can be 
identified. However, of the 398 incidents just under 20% resulted in a positive identification of 
the perpetrator. In an attempt to improve detection rates we have recently purchased 2 
Revader CCTV cameras to use solely to combat fly-tipping. We use this type of camera to 
gather evidence in serious cases of Anti Social Behaviour with great success. It is hoped 
these cameras will assist in increasing the number of positive identifications. 
  
2.2.7 We are well aware that we can not deal with fly-tipping alone and working in close 
partnership with the local authority is key. The ASB Coordinator has worked well with the 
dedicated Environmental Health Officer providing evidence for several cases including 
evidence used for a successful prosecution against a fly-tipping perpetrator who had fly tipped 
needles near a primary school. Also since May 2018, regular meetings have been held 
between our officers and the Waste Services Manager, to address issues around excess 
waste, refuse and recycling left at collection points. As a result of issues in one of our 
complexes in Cefn Coed we have recently erected a CCTV camera in the bin room to identify 
residents who are failing to recycle and dispose of their rubbish correctly. The ASB 
Coordinator has also undertaken a recycling project in the Gurnos (spot checking streets and 
identifying consistent households not recycling and visiting to educate and assist). Meetings 
have also recently been arranged with the Environmental Services Manager.  
 
2.2.8 Taking positive enforcement action has resulted in a noticeable reduction of fly-tipping 
on our estates as confirmed earlier in section 2.1.2.  
 
 Page 16



     

5 
 

 
 
2.3 Prevention 
 
2.3.1 Although we appreciate that fly-tipping will never be totally eradicated, we understand 
the importance of prevention through education and community initiatives.  
 
2.3.2 During the last 12 months we have undertaken 4 school projects. This has involved the 
Environmental Team working with 4 local schools to deliver presentations and practical 
exercises focused on fly-tipping prevention and the importance of recycling.  A promotional 
video using one of the schools to highlight the issue to a younger audience has also been 
developed. Excellent feedback has been received from both children and teachers. Follow up 
visits are being arranged and the project will be extended to other schools this year.  
 
2.3.3 We are always keen to participate in any local or national events and are currently 
taking part in Keep Wales Tidy 2019 Spring Clean Campaign. Our Environmental Team has 
organised 11 litter picks throughout the borough encouraging residents and staff to participate 
in this national campaign. 
 
2.3.4 Examples of some local preventative projects we have undertaken are as follows: 

  Joint Initiative with South Wales Fire and Rescue Service -prior to bonfire night we 

worked alongside South Wales Fire and Rescue Service to target an area where there 

have been constant issues with bonfires and littering which involved a joint door knock 

and leaflet drop. In addition a skip day was held in the area one week before bonfire 

night, which provided residents with an opportunity to correctly dispose of any rubbish, 

reducing the amount that could be discarded or burnt. For the first time ever there 

wasn’t a bonfire in the street.  Such preventative projects do work, this year we 

removed 9 tons of waste following bonfire night which is a 3 tonne reduction from the 

previous year. 

 The Environmental Team also works in partnership with MTCBC, Keep Wales Tidy, 

Natural Resources Wales, Grow Wild, and the Gurnos Community group, delivering a 

number of projects and initiatives. On September 29th  2018, we held in partnership 

with Grow Wild, and the Gurnos Community Group in Honeysuckle Close Gurnos; a 

wildflower planting day. We allocated a small green open space on our land for the 

local community to plant wildflowers on. As the community has been involved in the 

project it is hoped they will ensure it remains clear of refuse and rubbish. 

 A number of former garage sites have been cleared and cut back.  
 

 On 1st November 2018 we held a consultation at Trefechan regarding the use of waste 

land behind Maple Crescent. This was held in partnership with ACTIF Woods (charity 

that works to improve the physical, mental and social well-being of people through 

outdoor woodland activities which promote health and well-being) and MTCBC to 

gather resident views and feedback on potential ideas for the area, with a project 

planned for later this year. 

Page 17



     

6 
 

3. Where we want to be 
 
3.1 Our ultimate aim is to eradicate fly-tipping on our land. However, we are realistic in terms 
of accepting this is unlikely to ever happen. We therefore will continue working to achieve: 
 

 A reduction in incidents. 

 The identification of a greater number of fly-tipping perpetrators and take appropriate 
action against them. 

 Increased awareness of the issue through greater interaction with schools, local 
communities and national events.  

 Excellent partnership working with the local authority and other key agencies.  

 The creation of pride and respect in our communities encouraging others to take 
responsibility. 

 Publicising actions taken as a deterrent. 
 

4.0 Recommendations 
 
       4.1 Scrutiny Committee notes the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Household Waste & Recycling Centres (HWRCs) 
Update  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report provides information on the management and operations of the 

Household Waste & Recycling Centres (HWRCs) following the expiry of the Private 
sector contract in September 2018 and subsequent in-house management of the 
sites. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The content of this report to be discussed and noted. 
 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Since the provision of Household Waste & Recycling Centres became a statutory 

requirement (EPA 1990), in the early 1990s MTCBC have contracted to private 
sector companies to manage and operate the sites on our behalf. 

 
3.2 Between September 2013 and September 2018 the HWRCs at Dowlais and Aberfan 

have been managed and operated by Potters Waste Management Ltd. 
 
3.3 In 2016/17 it became evident that the current contract with Potters was costly and 

had limited control over the way that MTCBC needed it to operate. 
 

Date Written 3rd April 2019 

Report Author Paul Davies/Stephen Thomas 

Service Area Waste Services 

Committee Date 15th April 2019 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



3.4 Between January and June 2017 a business case was developed to consider 
options for the council on the expiry of the existing contract on 31st August. The 
Council to manage the sites in-house was the preferred option. 

 
3.5 On 27th September 2017 the proposal to manage the HWRCs in-house was given 

Full Council approval.  
 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Following the Council approval an implementation plan was developed to ensure that 

from 1st September 2018 the council was ready to manage and operate the sites. 
 
4.2 Critical areas of the plan were: 

 Ensure that an effective exit strategy for Potters was in place. 

 Obtain new waste management permits and Fire Mitigation Plans for each site. 

 Develop an Environmental Management System for the sites. 

 Appoint a sites manager and supervisor. 

 Ensure that the council had the relevant qualifications to operate the sites legally. 

 Procure plant & equipment. 

 Procure markets for recyclable materials. 

 Re-develop areas of the Dowlais site to comply with the permit requirements. 
 
4.3 All of the points above were achieved within their relevant timeframes ensuring a 

good transition. 
 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The sites have been managed and operated efficiently from 1st September 2018.  
 
5.2 Contractual arrangements with the material reprocesses are operating effectively. 

Ongoing dialogue continues with the contractors to ensure that material streams are 
clean and free from contaminants. 

 
5.3 The sites are cleaner than they were under the previous contractor. A strict cleansing 

schedule has been implemented.  
 
5.4 The new traffic management system that has been developed at the Dowlais site is 

working efficiently, providing a quicker throughput of traffic using the site, as well as 
providing site users with an easier system for depositing their materials. 

 
5.5 The new site layouts, including the provision of sorting stations at both sites ensures 

that we are able to maximise the amount of recyclable materials we collect and 
reduce the amount of residual waste. 

 
5.6 A comparison of the monthly recovery rates between September 2017 and March 

2018 and September 2018 and March 2019 are similar. 
 
5.7 The TUPE transfer of the Potters staff is ongoing. 
 
5.8 New improved welfare facilities have been provided for site staff at the Dowlais site. Page 20



 
5.9 An additional site operative has been appointed and the use of agency staff to cover 

leave and sickness has been implemented. 
 
5.10 In February 2019 a scheme was implemented at the Dowlais site to provide 

residents of the County Borough with free paint. Paint deemed in good condition by 
the site operatives is removed from the paint for recycling container and placed in a 
separate container from where the public can access it. 

 
5.11 In November 2018, in conjunction with WRAP and a Private sector organisation, a 

trial to compact Expanded Polystyrene Foam (EPF) was demonstrated at the 
Dowlais site. WRAP are currently assessing the effectiveness of this trial and will be 
providing a report to us presently. 

 
5.12 Since November 2018 materials that are deemed re-useable by the site operatives 

have been placed in a container at the Dowlais site in order to gather a stock of 
materials for re-sale at the re-use shop in Pentrebach once operational. 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 To provide compliant, user friendly sites, making improvements where necessary. 
 
6.2 To effectively contribute to our overall recovery performance targets. 
 
6.3 To attain a high level of recovery at the sites aiming to achieve and exceed welsh 

government`s collections blueprint figure of 90%. 
 
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The Council is legally required to ensure continued compliance with the site`s waste 

management permits which are being attained but may require future improvements 
in line with any changing legislation. 

 
7.2 Finalise the TUPE transfer of Potter`s staff. 
 
7.3 Maintain and improve on high quality material for recycling. 
 
7.4 Amend and improve the current van permit scheme. 
 
7.5 Investigate the opportunity to accept trade recyclables at the sites. 
 
7.6 Investigate operating a resident’s only policy at the sites. 
 

 
8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 Waste Services contributes to the Council’s environmental wellbeing objective; 
communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside. 

 

Page 21



JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER FOR NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 
PLANNING AND COUNTRYSIDE 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind scrutiny committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached work programme and approves, revises or 
amends it as deemed appropriate.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 
by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

 

Date Written 5th April 2019 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 15th April 2019 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 
help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include:  
 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future;  

 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish;  

 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets;  

 Developing safer communities; and  

 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market. 
 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include:  
 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution;  

 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 
hierarchy;  

 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 
spaces; and  

 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy. 
 
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include:  
 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm;  

 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience;  

 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity;  

 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health;  

 Clear and accessible information and advice; and  

 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home 
 

 
 
 

Page 24



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme? 
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Wellbeing 

Objectives and priorities? 
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns? 
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest? 
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications? 
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 

department 
 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose 

 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 
major issue  

d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 
investigation / review 

e. to explore possible solutions to an issue 
 

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 

Page 25



e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 
pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome?  
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations? 
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 
 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 

consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 
b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 
c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 

to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 
e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 
f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 
g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 

calls for evidence). 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 

Page 26



 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

 

APPENDIX I 

Page 28



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives 

(Corporate Objectives) 

Officer & Cabinet 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  

18th June 2018 

Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 
 

Martin Stark / Carwyn 
Morris / Sue Gow /  
Cheryllee Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The nitrogen dioxide levels 
exceeded the National Air Quality Objective at a number 
of monitoring locations along the Twynyrodyn Road from 
the roundabout at the western end (Tesco) to the 
crossroads between Gilfach-Cynon and Arfryn Place.  This 
is an area of high Public interest / concern and will this 
report will provide the committee with an update on the 
Air Quality Management Area. 
 

Energy Update (Carbon 
Management)  
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Mick Campbell /  
Cheryllee Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report to provide an update on 
the Carbon Management Plan. This outlines a strategy to 
deliver a programme of initiatives to achieve our 
reduction targets and ultimately reduce the Authority’s 
revenue expenditure by £350,000 per annum by the end 
of the five year plan. 
 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

No Officers in 
attendance – Report for 
information. 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 
 

Task & Finish Group report on 
“ Capital Project Referral 
(Brandy Bridge scheme / 
Road Slip - South of 
Pontygwaith)” 
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Task and Finish Group The Task and Finish Group will provide a report for the 
Committee for consideration. This follows the referral 
from Cabinet member for Governance.  

23rd July 2018 

C
o

u
n

tr
ys

id
e 

an
d

 
O

p
e

n
 

Sp
ac

es
 Countryside (including 

the Environment Act) 
EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Rolf Brown /  Judith 
Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report to provide the 
committee with details for example of what the Section 
does, what they can do to help Community Groups. 
 

P
age 29



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Open Spaces Strategy – 
An update 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Tom Bramley /  Judith 
Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - a shared and strategic approach 
to the provision of open space is essential for the 
provision of well-designed and cared for open spaces 
within our County Borough. To receive details of the 
Councils Open Space Strategy and details of current and 
future plans. To also provide details of all Measures- and 
progress against them. 
 

10th 
September 
2018 

Recycling / Landfill 
(Performance). 
 
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr K Gibbs / Cheryllee 
Evans /  Paul Davies / 
Steve Thomas 

Scrutiny & Challenge:-  By 2025 at least 70% of municipal 
waste is to be recycled and the remaining (residual) 30% 
is to be dealt with by high efficiency Energy from Waste 
plant. The Recycling / Landfill performance data will have 
been published in August. The main focus of the 
Authority is to build on recent successes and continue to 
improve performance to enable us to exceed the Welsh 
Government statutory target. A report to scrutiny 
providing details of the figures, showing trends, 
comparisons with other Welsh authorities and progress 
against targets.  
 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Simon 
Jones (Legal) / Jemma 
Price (Nee Rough) / Paul 
Jones 
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report to provide an update on 
environmental enforcement i.e. number of fly tipping 
prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty Notices 
etc. Also an update on the new legislation and how this 
has been implemented. 
 

22nd October 
2018 

Household Waste and 
Recycling Centres (HWRC) 
 
 
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Paul 
Davies / Steve Thomas 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The contract for the management 
of Household Waste and Recycling Centres (HWRC’s) 
expired on 1st September 2018 and the facilities were 
brought back under the control of the Council. How has 
the transition gone? 
 

P
age 30



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

No Officers in 
attendance – Report for 
information. 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 
 

3rd December 
2018 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Simon 
Jones (Legal) / Jemma 
Price (Nee Rough) / Paul 
Jones 
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 
 

Street Cleansing Performance 
(This report was deferred 
until further notice due to the 
current redundancy 
/restructure exercise as 
agreed by the scrutiny 
committee on 3rd December 
2018) 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Jemma 
Rough / Paul Jones 
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report to provide an update on 
the cleanliness of the streets within the borough i.e. litter 
picking, needle stick complaints, dog fouling.  This is an 
area of high Public interest / concern. 
 

Local Development Plan (LDP) 
Update 
 
This was rescheduled from 
22nd October 2018 as agreed 
by the scrutiny committee on 
23rd July 2018. 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr K Gibbs / John Raine 
/  Judith Jones 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Under the provisions of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, all Councils 
have a duty to produce an LDP Annual Monitoring Report 
(AMR) which must be submitted to the Welsh 
Government by the end of October each year. 
Scrutiny will – firstly consider whether the policies 
identified in the monitoring framework are being 
implemented, and secondly, to consider whether the 
plan as a whole is working successfully. 
 

21st January 
2019 

Highways; Winter 
Maintenance; and Street 
Lighting Update 
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Darren 
Chaffe / Chris Ridout 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An update  on Highways; Winter 
Maintenance; and Street Lighting  
 

P
age 31



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

No Officers in 
attendance – Report for 
information. 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 

11th March 
2019 

Carbon Management EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Mick Campbell / Energy 
Officer / Cheryllee Evans 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report to provide an update on 
the Carbon Management Plan. This outlines a strategy to 
deliver a programme of initiatives to achieve our 
reduction targets and ultimately reduce the Authority’s 
revenue expenditure by £350,000 per annum by the end 
of the five year plan. 
 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Simon 
Jones (Legal) / Jemma 
Price (Nee Rough) / Paul 
Jones 
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 
 

15th April 2019 

Household Waste and 
Recycling Centres (HWRC) 
 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Cllr Kevin Gibbs /  
Cheryllee Evans / Paul 
Davies / Steve Thomas 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The contract for the management 
of Household Waste and Recycling Centres (HWRC’s) 
expired on 1st September 2018 and the facilities were 
brought back under the control of the Council. We are 
now 6 months on. An update on the current position and 
future plans. 
 

Environment Enforcement 
across the County Borough 

EW Environmental 
Wellbeing 

No Officers in 
attendance – Report for 
information. 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - An information report to provide 
an update on environmental enforcement i.e. number of 
fly tipping prosecutions; Section 34 notices; Fixed Penalty 
Notices etc. This is a standing item. This is an area of high 
Public interest / concern. 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 32



Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Merthyr Valleys Homes 
Update 
(This was a request from the 
Chair and agreed in 3rd 
December Scrutiny) 

- Victoria Slade and Maria 
Lewis 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report from Merthyr Valleys 
Homes to give the members an overview on how they 
currently tackle fly-tipping issues, the levels of incidents 
encountered and the amount of waste that this involves.   
 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

   

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

   

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

   

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

   

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Environmental Enforcement across the County Borough
	4 Merthyr Valleys Homes – Tackling Fly-Tipping, an Overview
	Appendix A

	5 Household Waste and Recycling Centres (HWRCs) Update
	7 Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018/19
	Appendix 2


